
WILLIAMSBURG-JAMES CITY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 
Minutes from March 7, 2012 

Joint Meeting 

1. Joint Meeting at 8:00 a.m. in the Law Enforcement Center, 4600 Opportunity Way, 
Williamsburg, VA. 
1.01 Call to Order/Roll Call- Ms. Ruth Larson (Chair) called the School Board to order at 8:00 
a.m. Present were Ms. Elise Emanuel, Mr. Joseph Fuentes, Mr. Jim Kelly, Ms. Ruth Larson, Mr. 
James Nickols and Dr. Oscar Prater. Mrs. Cordasco arrived at 8:11 a.m. Also present were Dr. 
Steven Constantino, Superintendent; Dr. Scott Burckbuchler, Assistant Superintendent for 
Finance and Operations; and, Ms. Janet Cerza, Clerk of the Board. 

Ms. Mary Jones (Chair) called the Board of Supervisors to order at 8:00 a.m. Present were Mr. 
James Icenhour, Ms. Mary Jones, Mr. James Kennedy, and Mr. John McGlennon. Also present 
was Robert Middaugh, County Administrator. 

Mr. Clyde Haulman (Mayor) called the City Council to order at 8:00 a.m. Present were Mr. 
Scott Foster, Mr. Paul Freiling, Mr. Clyde Haulman, Ms. Judith Knudson and Mr. Douglas Pons. 
Also present was Mr. Jackson Tuttle, City Manager. 

2. Joint Meeting Agenda Items 
2.01 School Division Update- Dr. Constantino gave a presentation on what the school division 
can celebrate and tie to long-term plans and budget. See Attachment 

The use of technology in schools was discussed. Dr. Constantino stated technology does not 
replace pedagogy. At the elementary level it supports learning. In the middle and high schools it 
is used for exploring information and engagement in addition to supporting learning in the early 
years for brain development. It is an organizational tool in the middle school years. 

2.02 School Board Budget & CIP Process - Dr. Constantino explained he understood the 
budget issues and was trying to reduce the organization in such a way that nothing is killed. 

Dr. Scott Burckbuchler, Assistant Superintendent for Finance and Operations, gave an overview 
of the budget: $111.9 million (1.3% increase over 2011-2012 budget); the local increase request 
is for $2.8 million; stimulus funds are no longer available ($1.8 million) and there is a $1.4 
million increase. 

Expenditures (See Attachment) VRS is due to increase, and probably health insurance will 
increase also. WJCC plans to return to current staffing caps at the elementary school level. The 
group discussed the stresses on teachers. 

Health insurance options and shared position benefits were discussed. Mr. Pons questioned 
health insurance, was there an opportunity to drop deductibles for doctor visits? Dr. 
Burckbuchler Plan design changes could be made, but we would have to consider how it will 
affect employees. We will look at this again in the future. Mr. Kennedy asked if the schools 
have worked with the county to come up with a partnership or self-insurance for health 
msurance. 



Mrs. Cordasco questioned if the employee healthcare contribution was increased, could it save 
other employees positions. 

Mr. Pons questioned the $1 million increase for teachers, options and drivers, - are subs for 
teachers becoming a trend? Dr. Burckbuchler responded there is a trend of increasing costs and 
these cost centers were updated to provide additional detail at the building level. Need to budget 
what history tells us. 

Ms. Larson stated that teachers are getting more asked of them with less compensation and 
assistance. Education is an ever changing picture. Teachers are being judged on how a student 
is doing on a standardized test. We are very concerned about moral. 

Dr. Constantino noted that the commonwealth has applied for a waiver to NCLB, but must have 
a growth model in place to do so. With the new SOLs in math and other core courses, there will 
probably not be any growth. The state superintendent believes SOL scores across the state will 
go down. Mr. Kelly stated that teachers are doing the best they can for students. State funding 
has been reduced and enrollment is growing in WJCC. 

Dr. Constantino stated that he had two meetings for those who wanted to speak about the budget. 
Staff was wonderful- they understand and are working hard to solve problems as best they can. 

Ms. Larson stated that enrollment is going up because people move here for the schools. WJCC 
must remain competitive and attractive so people want to move to our community. 

Mr. Icenhour noted that staff is a large cost in the budget. When he was in the military he was 
told that the solution to the problem is "we will do more with less"; and, morale became a 
problem. His daughter teaches in the Newport News area. Teaching is a difficult job and we 
need to solve the problem with their cooperation. People are the solutions to a problem, they are 
not the problem. 

Mr. Haulman asked about the metrics used to determine what is happening; and, be ready for 
coming changes? Dr. Constantino answered some are starting now - having to do with the 
Strategic Plan and the use of data. How will it affect change and instruction? The data system 
and Baldrige will help determine what metrics can be used and to try to predict where we will be. 

Mr. Freiling asked for updates on the CEO (alternative education) program. Dr. Constantino 
said they surveyed parents and kids affected by the student coach program. WJCC is touching 
more students than before. Think will be able to maintain success with a larger number of 
students. WJCC will make a clean assessment of this process and then determine what needs to 
be done. We are collecting anecdotal information, parent responses, student responses and other 
interactions. Parents that responded were aware of the student coach program and pleased their 
children were in it. 

Mr. Freiling would like to see this data shared, perhaps at a city council meeting. He has heard 
high school graduation rates, at the national level, are very low. How does WJCC compare? Dr. 



Constantino responded that the community should be proud of the WJCC graduation rates. 
When you hear national statistics, remember that states calculate graduation rates differently, and 
much is being driven by urban centers. They are facing difficulties with drop out rate. The state 
measures students that complete school in a certain number of years. The number differs with 
students that enter or leave WJCC during the usual time frame. 

Mr. McGlennon asked what the impact of this years budget will be on AP test taking? Dr. 
Constantino stated we could see a drop in the number of kids who choose to take the test. Dr. 
Burckbuchler noted that if there was a situation of need WJCC will take care of that. Mr. 
McGlennon noted that test taking helps evaluate classes. 

Mr. McGlennon asked if there would be increased costs in the elementary school level for more 
intervention services if the present preschool goes away. Dr. Constantino said we are looking at 
a reduction of 30 students. Would hope to fmd a way to absorb into the current remediation 
plan. Mr. McGlennon asked if the waiting list for students will continue to grow. Dr. 
Constantino replied that as rigor raises so will this. 

Mr. McGlennon asked abut the new math. What do we anticipate seeing? Large drop this year 
then increasing next several years. How do we prepare teachers for this? Dr. Constantino said 
they started a year ago by telling students/parents/ staff that the standards were changing. WJCC 
will probably see a dip and then come out of the dip. In Georgia the test score dropped 20 points 
in the first year. 

Ms. Jones asked if the PreK program is for 2, 3, and 4 year olds. Currently it is primarily for 3 
&4 year olds and two-year olds with special needs. How do screenings happen? In CDR, Social 
Services program, and parents, etc. The program has been around for 40 years. Ms. Jones noted 
that she hadn't heard any data on tracking the success of the program. Three million for 350 
students is a lot of money for a very small number of students. There's not any measure to track 
students success. Dr. Constantino responded that there are statistics on students coming out of 
Bright Beginnings and PreK through PALs testing. It shows that PreK has a significant impact 
on Kindergarten students. Mr. McGlennon asked that the material be sent to City Council and 
the Board of Supervisors. How much is actually being spent on the instruction part? $3.5 
million for most of the PreK program. 

Mr. Haulman stated they could pay the money now or pay the money later - intervention costs 
could be avoided later. Mrs. Cordasco questioned special education verses other situations. She 
said there is no data on 3, 4 and 5 grades. She has data showing that kids lose information by 
fourth grade. The PreK budget cut is less than a 10% reduction to the PreK program. Mrs. 
Cordasco stated that they need to focus on the 10,000 other students in K-12. Dr. Constantino 
sees PreK as part of the core business. Ms. Knudson said she thought PreK was very important, 
and intervention later on will cost us more. She would be careful of national data on PreK, as 
some PreK programs are better than others. Bright Beginnings is significantly better than other 
programs. This is part of what we should do in our education system. 

Mr. Kennedy asked if the teachers are full-time for this half day program costing $3.5 million? 
Yes, teachers are full-time. Could there be two half-day programs - one in the morning and one 



in the afternoon? Is there a redundancy of programs and/or services? What about a facility to 
serve certain neighborhoods with PreK and adult learning as a goal? Dr. Constantino responded 
that the PreK programs are blended. He also learned that teachers screened and evaluated 950 
students last year. Dr. Burckbuchler responded that the teachers cannot do a 4/4 job and have 
time for planning and home visits. WJCC is looking at everything and will continue to do so. 
The goal is to preserve it as best they can through this process. 

Ms. Jones asked if this was the standard program with other localities. Must offer PreK for 
special education 4 year olds, but not for 2 & 3 year olds unless they are special education. 

Dr. Prater said the presentation on PreK was excellent last night. He would like to maintain the 
existing PreK program, but cuts need to be made to both the PreK and music programs. 

Mr. Foster asked what the implications would be in losing 18 teachers and 20 teaching positions. 
What do we expect actual outcome to be? Dr. Burckbuchler responded 33 teachers with 32 
teacher assistants dropped to 13 for PreK. Teacher assistants are a priority in the elementary 
schools. Principals met with administrators and decided it was a workable plan to remove two 
assistants per building, but can use remaining teacher assistants as the principal decides. After 
Kindergarten then there is one teacher assistant for each grade level. They talked with people 
about these cuts. Ms. Larson noted that teacher assistants are used instructionally in reading with 
kids in the hallways and assisting with other subjects (math). 

Dr. Constantino said the teacher assistants are determining reading levels of students through a 
reading assessment pilot to improve reading in the school system. Mr. Freiling asked what grade 
level PALs scores? Kindergarten. 

Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) - Ms. Larson noted that the School Board has not had the 
chance to discuss the CIP, it will be discussed next week. Dr. Constantino said he crafted a 
vision for the future, in which one solution to resolving the issue on space is a new concept for a 
fourth middle school. He gave a presentation on the historical structure of schools, which hasn't 
changed. See attachment. He is proposing changing the traditional classroom design/look and 
creating a school that fits the needs of students through programmatic flexibility of integrated 
design environment. The proposed fourth middle school addresses concepts of: the way people 
learn and access information; national growing trend in charter school development; and, virtual 
learning and blended learning. There may be funding grants available for these programs. The 
IB Programme could be expanded into middle school as well as the commitment to personalized 
learning options in education. Create a digital academy through a community school. Digital 
learning changes the way students think. This is a conversation on the needs of students and put 
their needs first. It is also a vision of what could be or might be in the future. 

Dr. Constantino reviewed where we are nationally with education. Mr. McGlennon noted that 
WJCC is below the state funding in 2009. He asked ifthere was a tie to measurable indicators to 
see if we are succeeding. Ms. Knudson said both her children are doing jobs that were not there 
when they were in school. Need to teach students to think and evaluate. Schools with desks 
lined up facing the teacher do not teach this. Mr. Kelly stated it wasn't the way to prepare for 



jobs available today. Mr. Kelly stated that the community investment in a building can serve 
high school students, adults; and, the building could be used for 18-20 hours a day. 

Mr. Fuentes said the new middle school was in the CIP in 2008. At that time, Mr. Goodson 
asked if we were considering closing Blair when the new middle school was brought on line. 
The estimated money saved on overhead to house central office at James Blair is $2 million per 
year. We weren't sure how long James Blair would be closed, but all agreed it would be 
reopened in the future- 2017 is the projected out date in the CIP for a fourth middle school. 

Ms. Larson said she liked the central location of Blair. The school employees are able to connect 
with each other easily. She is pleased with the creative thinking. Education is creativity - you 
cannot stifle the future. How can we best serve our students? 

Dr. Constantino said when he inherited the conundrum and then heard there was a space 
problem, he felt this proposal would help meet space needs in 2017. It provides the opportunity 
to have a conversation about the future. 

Ms. Jones felt the idea would have a big price tag. The intent was to bring James Blair back on 
line and find an appropriate location for administration. The community feels the intent was 
always to bring James Blair back on line for the students. 

Dr. Constantino said they have contacted realtors looking for appropriate office space. Kids in 
creative classrooms outweigh the space for central office. There are 125 administrative people in 
James Blair. 

Mr. Haulman stated that in projections for future city revenues, the city will not see much more 
growth, maybe in the 1-3% range. The funding bodies are stretching to pay their budgets. He 
suggested that WJCC think about numbers at 1 Yz - 2% for planning. 

Ms. Jones said there probably will be an increase next year in healthcare and they didn't know 
where VRS was going. There are many variables out there. They do value teachers and what 
they do. She questioned how budget issues are approached and what they can afford. 

Mr. Haulman said they would be better off having a conversation now about what this really 
means. Dr. Constantino said it was better for the WJCC Strategic Planning process. He was 
made aware of a Quality of Life study by economic development, and the environmental scan of 
the peninsula that was part of the Strategic Planning process. Also, how are we going to keep 
our kids competitive? 

Mr. Freiling said they need to be aware of what's possible. We will put fiscal constraints on this, 
but we want to know - whether student should fit the system or the system should fit the student. 
What is the best way to serve students? Creating flexibility takes the pressure off teachers and 
students. 

Mr. Fuentes said there has always been something in the CIP for a new office building. The new 
central office at James Blair has improved the efficiency of services- very much. New office 



spaces should have them housed in the same location. It's refreshing to solve the problem with a 
new approach while maintaining James Blair and building on the same site. He would like to see 
a pencils and paper school developed. 

Mr. Kennedy left the meeting at 10:15 a.m. 

Ms. Jones asked (about the middle school athletics program) if other localities will be dropping 
their middle school athletic programs. Dr. Constantino said they would like to keep middle 
school sports, even if it's intramural. 

Adjournment- The Williamsburg-James City County School Board adjourned at 10:19 a.m. 

Mr. McGlennon made a motion to adjourn until March 13. the Board of Supervisors adjourned 
at 10:10 a.m. 

Mr. Freiling made a motion to adjourn. City Council adjourned at 10:19 a.m. 




















































	03072012BOSJ2
	03072012BOSJ2A

